HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 22, 2016
1:33 p.m

1: 33: 20 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Thonpson called the House Finance Conmittee
neeting to order at 1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Co-Chair
Representati ve Steve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative Lynn Gattis
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representati ve Cat hy Minoz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Tanme W/ son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Qui nl an St ei ner, Director, Publ i c Def ender Agency,
Department of Admnistration; April WIkerson, Director,
Di vi si on of Adm ni strative Servi ces, Depart ment of
Corrections; Kelly Cunningham Analyst, Legislative Finance
Di vi si on; Dean WIIi ans, Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of
Corrections; Diane Casto, Behavioral Health Policy Advisor,
Division of Behavior Health, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Servi ces; VAt t Davi dson, Program Coordi nat or,
Division of Juvenile Justice, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services; Lauree Mrton, Executive Director, Council
on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault, Departnent of
Public Safety; Nancy Meade, General Counsel, Al aska Court
Systemm M chele Mchaud, Chief Health Oficer, D vision of
Retirement and Benefits, Departnment of Administration;

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Senat or John  Coghill; Representative Lora Reinbold;
Representative Liz Vasquez.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Richard Allen, Director, Ofice of Public Advocacy,
Department of Administration; Amy Erickson, Di rector,
Division of Mtor Vehicles, Departnment of Admnistration;
Tony Pi per, Program Manager, Al cohol Safety Action Program
Departnment of Health and Social Services; John Skidnore,
D rector, Crim nal Di vi si on, Department of Law; Kel l'y
Howell, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Public Safety; Gary Folger, Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Public Safety; Susanne D Pietro, Alaska
Judi ci al Counci |

SUMVARY

CSSSSB 91(FIN) AM
OWNI BUS CRI M LAW & PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS

CSSSSB 91(FIN) AM was HEARD and HELD in committee
for further consideration.

Co- Chair Thonpson di scussed the neeting agenda.

#sb9l

CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 91(FIN) am
"An Act relating to crimnal law and procedure;
relating to controlled substances; relating to

i mmunity from prosecution for t he crinme of
prostitution; relating to probation; relating to
sentencing; establishing a pretrial services program
with pretrial services officers in the Departnent of
Corrections; relating to the publication of suspended
entries of judgnent on a publicly avail able Internet

websi t e; relating to pernmanent fund dividends;
relating to electronic nmoni t ori ng; relating to
penalties for violations of nunicipal ordinances;
relating to par ol e; relating to correctiona
restitution centers; relating to community work
servi ce; relating to revocati on, term nation

suspensi on, cancellation, or restoration of a driver's
license; relating to the excise tax on nmarijuana;
establishing the recidivism reduction fund; relating
to the Alaska Crimnal Justice Comm ssion; relating to

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



the disqualification of persons convicted of specified
drug offenses from participation in the food stanp and
tenporary assistance prograns; relating to the duties
of the conm ssioner of corrections; anmending Rules 32,
32.1, 38, 41, and 43, Aaska Rules of Crimnal
Procedure, and repealing Rules 41(d) and (e), Al aska
Rules of Crimnal Procedure; and providing for an
effective date.”

1: 34: 02 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson discussed that the conmittee would
address the packet of fiscal notes. He relayed that they
would begin with the Departnment of Admnistration (DQA).
[ Note: the commttee addressed a packet of fiscal notes
nunbered 1 through 20 for clarity. These nunbers do not
actually correspond with the formal fiscal note nunbers.]

RI CHARD ALLEN, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF PUBLIC ADVOCACY,
DEPARTVENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON (via t el econf erence),
addressed the previously published zero fiscal note FN16
fromthe Ofice of Public Advocacy [labeled 1 at the top of
t he packet; OB Conponent Nunber 43]. He was available for
any questions.

Representative Gara asked if they could add sonme guardian
ad litempositions to the fiscal note.

Co- Chair Thonpson replied in the negative.

Representative Gara asked about adding positions the
foll owi ng year.

Co- Chair Thonpson replied "maybe. "

1: 36: 17 PM
AT EASE

1: 37: 07 PM
RECONVENED

Representative WIson asked how nmuch of the returning
popul ation was nmade up of second and third offenders who
woul d not recidivate again if the progranms were successful.
M. Alen responded that the answer would be purely
specul ative at the current time. The departnent was very
hopeful there would be a reduction in recidivism as a

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



result of the prograns. He was unconfortable providing a
specul ative answer.

Representative WIson asked how nany repeat offenders
needed help nmultiple times. M. Allen replied that the
nunmber was significant; about two-thirds of offenders
reof fended in sone way.

Representative WIson asked if there was any way to know
how many of the repeat offenders needed a public defender
versus a private attorney. M. Alen replied that the
maj ority of offenders received public defenders.

1: 39: 14 PM

QUI NLAN STEI NER, DI RECTOR, PUBLI C DEFENDER AGENCY,
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION, addressed the zero fiscal
note FN17 from the Public Defender Agency [l abeled 2 at the
top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 1631]. He
communi cated that although the agency anticipated benefits
fromthe legislation, they were entirely specul ative until
it was determ ned which prograns would be funded and their
ef fecti veness was neasured. He stated that recidivism had
been consistent; therefore, he had not been able to nake
any projection about what kind of reduction in workload
woul d occur. Additionally, it was inportant to renenber
that casel oads had far exceeded the budget growth for nany
decades. He noted that the agency had never really caught
up conpletely. He reiterated that it was difficult to know
what fiscal benefit may occur.

Representative WIson asked if the agency would be keeping
statistics on whether the growh kept outweighing what the
agency had or if a decrease occurred.

M . St ei ner replied that the agency tracked its
appointnments and could determ ne the nunber from year-to-
year. He noted that the actual workload per case was harder
to estimte objectively; the agency did not have the tools
to nmeasure the objective workl oad.

Representative WIson wondered if the agency kept track of
repeat clients. M. Steiner answered in the negative. He
el aborated that it would require an audit of the workl oad.

Representative Gara thanked agency staff for working very
long hours. He surmsed that even though the nunber of

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



cases nmy decrease, an increase in the nunber of intensive
t herapeutic court cases would add nore work. M. Steiner
affirmed that therapeutic court cases tended to involve
nore work than one that resolved as a plea agreenent
because the case would continue and would require advising
the client and participation. He spoke to the difference
bet ween caseload and workload; one was easy to neasure
objectively, while the other was not.

1: 42: 41 PM

Representative Guttenberg recognized that M. Steiner could
be criticized for alnbst any nunber put in the fiscal note.
He surm sed that zero nay have been the safest bet because
t he nunber was not known. He remarked that throughout the
bill hearings the commttee had heard that they would get
to the cost when the fiscal notes were discussed. He
communi cated that the conmm ssioner had spent sone tine
tal king about the success of the various prograns in other
states. He furthered that portions of the agency's workl oad
may get bigger or smaller as a result of the legislation
He asked if the agency had | ooked at a change in casel oads
and the type of work it would have to do conpared to what
was happeni ng in other states.

M. Steiner answered "not specifically.” He el aborated that
t he agency used the current standard from the Anerican Bar
Associ ation (ABA) on how many cases a public defender could
handle in one year. Currently, the agency had nore cases
than the standard allowed. He furthered that sone states
had done specific workload studies and ended up having nuch
| ower maxi num casel oads than the ABA standard. However, it
required a level of work that the agency did not currently
have. He explained that there was a substantial study that
went along wth keeping track of tinme to come to a
defensi ble nunber. He stated that they were very
jurisdiction specific. He had |ooked at other states in
regards to how they | ooked at workl oad versus casel oad, but
not with respect to the changes in workload as a result of
the initiatives. He relayed in the future he would like to
get a better, nore objective neasure of worKkl oad.

Representative CQuttenberg stated that "we're all | ooking
forward to the success” of the bill. He reasoned that part
of the success would be requiring the agency to have the
ability to nmonitor the information. He asked if the agency
currently had that capability.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



M. Steiner answered that the agency would have the
capability to keep track of tine. He expounded that
technically it was not that difficult as it could be
witten down. The ability to process, collate, and anal yze
the informati on would require sonething that the agency did
not have funding for. He referred to the wrk as a
qualitative adjustment. For exanple, the information my
show what a person was doing; however, it was difficult to
show i f a person was not doing sonething they were supposed
to be doing. Conpiling and analyzing the information would
require additional funding.

Representative GQuttenberg stated that mnuch of what the
cormittee was trying to do was to have the agency
communi cate what it would not need to do. He acknow edged
that was difficult.

Vice-Chair Saddler did not know how there would be a zero
i npact on the agency if there was nore court activity. He
wondered if the fiscal note should be indeterm nate because
t he agency did not quite know what the effects would be. He
remarked that a zero note was pretty definitive.

M. Steiner estimated that there would not be overal

additional work as a result of the bill. He estimted that
additional work that nmay occur in therapeutic courts nay be
offset by the daily jail trips the agency would not have to
nmake. He noted that the tine the agency spent visiting
jails on a daily basis was very time consum ng. He reasoned
that with fewer people in jail, lawers would have nore
time to work on their cases in their offices. He had no way
of estimating the exact inpact. He continued that because
casel oads had exceeded budget growh for decades, even if
there was a benefit in the short-term there would not be
an imedi ate decrenent the agency could take; they would

still be around the maxi num caseload. He stated that the
i ssue needed to be figured out in the future. He explained
that if the changes under the bill worked properly, it was

theoretically possible that a caseload would decrease
enough for the agency to ethically take a decrenent.
However, the agency had already taken decrenents over the
past few years to staffing, which was pushing the naximm
casel oad over the limt.

1:48: 01 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Vi ce- Chai r Saddl er thought an indeterm nate fiscal note may
be nore accurate.

M. Steiner answered that he had always used indeterm nate
fiscal notes when he knew there would be a fiscal inpact
increasing the agency's costs, but the actual cost could
not be determned. He did not believe there would be
additional work as a result of the bill; therefore, he
submtted a zero fiscal note.

Representative Gara stated that it would be a zero fisca
note because the agency was used to working |onger hours;
it wuld be the sane nunber of people, but working |onger
hours if needed. He believed it was unfortunate, but it was
the current reality.

Co- Chair Thonpson noved on the next fiscal note from DOA,
specifically related to the Dyvision of Mtor Vehicles

(DW) .

AMY  ERI CKSCN, Dl RECTCR, DIVISION OF MOTOR VEH CLES,
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON (via t el econference),
addressed a new zero fiscal note from the House Finance
Commttee for the Departnent of Admnistration [|abeled 3
at the top of the packet; OvVB Conponent Nunber 2348]. She
expl ained that DW had originally submtted a fiscal inpact
note due to provisions related to an off-highway |icensing
anmendnent; however, the commttee had changed the note to
zero inpact. The division believed it would require a new
position for DW and the annual |oss of approximtely
$137,000 in vehicle registration fees.

Representative Kawasaki asked if the zero fiscal note
accurately reflected the bill given the inclusion of the
of f - hi ghway provi si on.

Co- Chair Thonpson replied that there would be a change to
the bill that would account for the zero fiscal note.

Representative Gattis relayed that the commttee was still
working on the bill and it would reflect the zero fiscal
not e.

1: 50: 59 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that as any changes were made the
commttee would receive wupdated fiscal notes from the

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



adm nistration. He noved on to discuss fiscal notes from
t he Departnent of Corrections (DOC).

APRIL WLKERSON, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF ADM N STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS, spoke to a previously
publ i shed fiscal note FN18 from DOC [l abeled 4 at the top
of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 698]. She relayed that
the fiscal note included the funding needed in order to
adjust the departnent's offender time accounting system
within the Alaska Corrections O fender Managenment System
(ACOVMB) database to accurately reflect the good-tine and

time accounting changes reflective in the bill. It was
anticipated that the departnent would need about $1.5
mllion to address the changes as well as any changes

associated wth the departnent's Victim Information
Notification System

Representative WIson stated that the departnent already
kept track of good-tine and ensuring victins were notified
about when it was tinme for them to arrive. She wanted to
know what needed to be changed. She opined that a better
system was needed if $1 mllion was required every tine a
change was nade.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that the changes in the bill would
require a contractor to wite a new program for ACOVS. She
explained that the current offender tinme mnagenent
accounting system was pretty conplicated. She explained
that to increase and adjust the time calculated by the
dat abase would require an additional contractor to cone in
to make the changes. Gven the short amount of tine
available to deploy the changes, the departnent’'s
programers could maintain the system however, the changes
i npacted many |evels of the system and resulted in system
corruptions when appli ed.

Representative Wl son discussed that good-tinme and pretrial
were both currently used by DOC. She observed that the bill
opened up the options for a few additional people to
utilize. She did not see how the bill was actually changing
the system

Ms. W /I kerson answered that the division had | ooked at the
issue and it did not currently have the ability to rewite
the formula for the time accounting currently being
applied; they wuld need the additional resources to
rewite the code.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Representative WIson stated that good-tinme was currently
allowed and the bill would make a few nore people eligible.
She asked if the fiscal note included costs of needed
upgrades that did not necessarily apply to the bill.

Ms. W1l kerson answered in the negative. She clarified that
it was not about fixing the database, it was taking the
dat abase fromits current spot and noving it forward.

1:55: 53 PM

Ms. WIlkerson would follow up with the conmmttee on the
guesti on.

Representative WIlson surmsed that the bill was not
changi ng the population and there were existing nechanisns
for everything currently provided. She furthered that the
bill broadened the spectrum of individuals eligible for the
option [good-tine]. She wanted to understand the difference
between increasing eligibility and how tinme was currently
kept. She | ooked forward to the answer from DOC

Ms. W/ kerson addressed a new fiscal inpact note from DOC
[labeled 5 at the top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber
1381]. She explained that it reflected the anticipated
reduction in the prison population over the comng fisca

years as a result of sentencing changes and good-tine
credits. In the first year, DOC anticipated a reduction in
the population of 299 offenders that equated to $4.5
mllion. In FY 18 DOC anticipated a reduction of 1,363
of fenders for an overall reduction of $20.6 mllion. She
furthered that the departnent anticipated a continued
reduction in 2019 of 205 offenders with an additional $3.1

mllion reduction. The departnent expected a slight
increase in inmates beginning in 2020 by about 112 totaling
$1.7 mllion. In 2021 and 2022 the anticipated increase was

139 and 172 inmates respectively. However, the overall net
i npact was a reduction of $21.86 mllion.

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered about the reason for the
increase beginning in 2020. He asked if the trend was
expected to continue increasing, which would elimnate the
savings in another five or so years.

Ms. W/ kerson responded that the inpacts of the |egislation
were seen in the first four years; however, once the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



impacts of the legislation were assuned, the net result of
the increases in the population would be wtnessed. She
expl ained that nurder charges would still go on and other
areas in other crimnal activity would drive the popul ation
back wup. She explained that the trend did continue to
increase in the out years at a much slower and nore |eveled
of f rate.

1: 59: 13 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if the accelerated rate would
continue forward and for how many years. Ms. W/l kerson did
not have the data on hand. She would follow up with the
i nformation.

Co-Chair Thonpson remarked that hopefully the legislation
woul d change sone behavi or and reduce the nunber of violent
crinmes in the future.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if the projected population
reduction figures included individuals who would reoffend.
He stated that currently tw-thirds of the offender
popul ati on reof fended within the first two years.

Ms. W/l kerson replied in the negative. The recidivism was
not included in the nunmbers. The nunbers illustrated the
antici pated reductions from changes to sentencing and | aws.

Representati ve Kawasaki thought the point of the bill was
to develop a restorative justice nodel through the Al aska
Crimnal Justice Commssion work. He reasoned that it
should be built into the fiscal note if the state was still
anticipating that two-thirds of the individuals would
r eof f end.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that it should be reflected in the
other fiscal notes related to <changes in probation

credits, additional conmunity treatnents, and other areas
in the | egislation.

Co- Chair Thonpson recogni zed Senator John Coghill in the
audi ence.

Representative Gattis saw SB 91 as a way the state and

crimnals would do business differently. She continued that
the bill |ooked at how to treat crimnals. She decided to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



hear about the remaining fiscal notes from DOC prior to
aski ng anot her questi on.

2:01:48 PM

Representative Pruitt did not see a reduction in personne

reflected in the fiscal note. He remarked that the note
indicated significant savings wth the reduction in
popul ati on rmanagenent. He wondered if there would be a
reduction or if the positions would nove to other areas
t hat woul d need additional people.

Ms. Wl kerson replied that as the population declined into
FY 18 and FY 19, the departnent anticipated that it would
be able to identify a potential closure of a facility and a
reall ocation of the resources. She explained that the
fiscal note related to pretrial showed indeterm nate out-
years because DOC anticipated being able to reallocate the
resources towards pretrial and remmining facilities that
were likely short staffed.

Representative Pruitt spoke to the prison population
nunbers and observed that the big savings would occur in
2018. He believed the effective date of the bill was in the
current year. He asked for verification that the bill would
change jail tinme for individuals who had already been in
jail for a period of tine.

Ms. W I kerson responded in the affirmative. She explained
that the bill wuld change release dates, furlough
eligibility dates, and early release from parole and
probati on.

Representative Pruitt asked for verification that the
changes resulted in the high cost savings shown in FY 18.
He noted the nunber was high at al nost 1, 400.

Ms. Wl kerson replied in the affirmative.

2:04:31 PM

Representative WIlson referred to the estimated reduced
pri son population for FY 17 (299) and FY 18 (1, 363) on page
two of the fiscal note. She asked if the conbined nunbers
woul d be enough to cl ose one of the state's prisons.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Ms. WIkerson answered in the affirmative; however, DOCC
woul d have to take a |ook at the remaining population and
its needs. She furthered that it could potentially be a
portion of a facility or an entire facility.

Representative Gara believed the biggest goal was to avoid
the need for building another prison. He pointed to the
estimated $4.52 million savings in FY 17 and asked if the
fiscal note had witten recently or earlier in session.

Ms. W/l kerson replied that the note had been updated on
April 15, 2016.

Vice-Chair Saddler pointed to the last line on the second
page of the fiscal note that read "annual savings are
cal cul ated using a margi nal cost rate of $41.49 per day per
person." He had seen a nunber of about $150 [per day]. He
asked for detail about the $41.49 figure and wondered
whet her the state would be saving as nuch as it thought.

Ms. WI kerson answered that DOC had selected a marginal
rate. She detailed that the daily cost of care rate for the
current cal endar year was $141.17 per day per inmate. She
explained that the figure included "all in" costs. Known
costs such as utilities and staffing had been renpoved from
the cost of care docunment and adjustable costs had been
added in to arrive at a marginal cost. She stated that in
the future there could potentially be a higher reduction in
savings if a facility cl osed.

2:07: 08 PM

Ms. W/ kerson addressed a previously published zero fisca
note FN20 from DOC rel ated to probation and parole [I|abel ed
6 at the top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 2826]. She
explained that the legislation granted credit and provided
for an incentive program for allowing good-tinme to
probati oners. She detailed that for 30 days of conpliance a
probationer could receive 30 days off of their probation
sentence. The departnment anticipated a reduction in the
probati on casel oads; however, it al so anti ci pat ed
additional individuals conmng onto the casel oads from those
earning good-time out of the facilities. The departnent
estimated that it would be a wash; therefore, it had
submtted a zero fiscal note.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson observed that the nunbers would offset
each ot her.

Co- Chair Neunman asked if there was anything in the fisca
note that would reflect changes in the sentencing and
parol e for good-tinme for sexual offenders.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that the fiscal note factored the
item in. She detailed that DOC had sex offender probation
officers with current casel oads and the adjustnment had been
calculated into the fiscal note.

Ms. WI kerson addressed a new fiscal inpact note from House
Finance Commttee for DOC [labeled 7 at the top of the
packet; QvB Conponent Nunber 2244]. The note requested
$300,000 in FY 17, $500,000 in FY 18, and $200,000 in FY
19. She explained that the funding would be utilized to
support the comunity residential center programm ng. The
note was reflective of the changes in Section 158 of the
| egi sl ation requiring departnents to have contract
providers deliver rehabilitation progranmng that would
also set standards for treatnment and risk assessnents of
i ndi vidual s housed in those facilities.

2: 09: 56 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson clarified that the fiscal note before the
conmittee showed an annual cost of $1 mllion in FY 19
t hrough FY 22. Ms. WI kerson answered that she had received
a revised fiscal note fromthe House Finance Conmittee.

Co- Chair Thonpson elucidated that the fiscal note was dated
April 21, 2016 and indicated the annual cost of $1 mllion
in FY 19 through FY 22. Ms. Wlkerson clarified that she
had been reading the increnments per fiscal year for a net
total of $1 million beginning in FY 19 and goi ng forward.

Representative WIson believed the state was paying for
open beds in many of the facilities. She asked why sone of
the open beds could not offset some of the costs included
in the fiscal note.

Ms. W/ kerson responded that DOC anticipated renegotiating

all of the contracts to utilize the funding for increased
pr ogr anmm ng.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Representative W/l son provided a scenario where there were
60 inmates in a 100-bed facility but the state was paying
for all 100 beds. She asked if there was a way the new
program costs could be covered by the extra cost being paid
to the facility for the enpty beds.

Ms. WIkerson answered that DOC anticipated filling the
beds with the releasing population. She noted that the
departnent did not anticipate increasing the bed count.

Representative WIson reasoned that the departnment would
save noney when costs of $150 [per inmate per day] were
reduced to a significantly |ower nunber. She thought the
money would filter down from the prison to the conmunity
residential centers. She did not see where there would be
an increase in noney because savings from one area could be
shifted to pay for another area within the departnent.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that the departnent had |ooked at
whet her they should decrenent down, but had nmade the
decision to try to mmintain the funding because it was
working to get the beds filled. The departnent had recently
changed one of the practices in the Anchorage area and had
started placing the unsentenced population back in the
community residential center. The rest of the comunity
residential centers were primarily filled at 99 percent
capacity. She elaborated that DOC anticipated using the
regul ar beds and portions of per diem beds, which would
require the need for the additional funding to neet the
need for substance abuse programm ng.

Representative WIson voiced concern that there was no
backup on the fiscal note showi ng whether the departnent
would need to hire nore people. She renmarked that wunlike
the previous fiscal note there was no reflection of savings
that would result. She stressed that there was no backup to
explain the $300, 000. She thought additional backup
informati on was needed to explain "how nmay are going to be
changed over," whether the centers would need to hire nore
peopl e, and ot her.

2:14: 20 PM

Ms. WI kerson answered that there had been a second page to
the fiscal note. She explained that the calculation had
conme about based on the departnent's internal progranmm ng
cost. The departnment did not anticipate allowng a

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



contractor to charge nore than what it would cost DOC to do
t he work in-house under current contracts.

Representative WIson requested page two of the fiscal
not e.

Represent ati ve Kawasaki agreed that having the second page
of the fiscal note would be beneficial.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked if M. WIkerson had the second
page. Ms. Wl kerson replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked staff to provide the second page to
the commtt ee.

Representati ve Kawasaki stated that the description on page
1 of the fiscal note indicated that it had been revised and
that it was funding for conmunity residential centers. He
asked if it was the sanme as correctional restitution
centers.

Ms. Wlkerson replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Saddler observed that $1 million to cover the
cost for the community residential center conprehensive
t r eat ment for subst ance abuse, cognitive behavi or

di sorders, and other crimnal risk factors including after
care was a substantial m ssion. He asked how confident DCC
was that the $1 mllion would cover the cost for all of the
services for 800 beds. He stated that if the anount was
accurate he would love to apply the nodel elsewhere in
behavi oral health services.

Ms. WI kerson answered that the departnment was currently
providing the cognitive prograns within the institutions at
the rate used to calculate the itens on the fiscal note.
The departnent believed that it could expand the prograns
out to neet the comunity through existing institutional
contracts or through the community residential centers.

2:17: 02 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler expressed interest in the rate. He
observed that the funds were all in services (excluding
per sonal services). He asked if the work would be

contracted out to privately run comunity residential
centers.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Ms. Wl kerson replied in the affirmative. She detail ed that
the work would either cone directly through the prograns
offered through the comunity residential centers or
through DOC contract providers that were currently
providing institutional support.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked how many correctional restitution
centers the state operated or contracted wth.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that the departnent had eight
contract facilities and six contracts; it had locations in
Bet hel , Juneau, Fai r banks, Norme, t hree centers in
Anchorage. She clarified there were seven.

Representative WIlson clarified that the funding included
in the fiscal note was not wundesignhated general funds
(UGF); it was recidivism reduction noney. She explained
that the departnent was using noney that was currently in
the system for the costs, which had been her initial
guestion. She had initially thought the fiscal note funding
source was new noney; it was not new noney - it was noney
used from a savings from a reduction in hard beds nobved
over to community residential centers for treatnent.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked about the daily rate. V5.
W | kerson asked for clarification.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked about the daily rate for services
identified in the fiscal note. Ms. WI kerson answered that
the cost was approxi mately $3.35 per person per day.

2:19: 18 PM

KELLY CUNNI NGHAM ANALYST, LEGQ SLATIVE FINANCE Dl VI SIQN,
clarified that the fiscal note did use new funds. She did
not believe the comrttee had addressed the projected
receipts fromthe marijuana tax that were in the bill. She
detailed that the bill <created a new sub-fund of the
CGeneral Fund, which would fund the fiscal note.

Representative Quttenberg asked about the fiscal note and
the use of noney from the recidivism reduction fund, which
used marijuana tax funds. He observed that the tax noney
was not expected to cone in for several years. He remarked
on the request for FY 17 and FY 18 and noted that the tax
revenue was currently unknown. He stated that earlier in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



the week Commi ssioner WIliams had expressed concerns about
substance abuse control in the comunity residentia
centers. He furthered that the comm ssioner had noted
concern about sending a person needing treatnent into one
of the centers, but the environnment was inappropriate. He
asked how the fiscal note inpacted the concern.

DEAN W LLIAMS5, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS
replied that he had been speaking broadly about the issue.
He detailed that there were sonme halfway houses that were
doing quite well and others that had sone specific
pr obl ens. He expounded that inproving the community
residential centers would not be an overnight process. He
did not see a conflict in terns of starting to build up
what was happening inside the halfway houses while the
departnment continued to inprove them He explained that the
contractors wanted the centers to be clean and operating
well. He believed the area had been neglected a bit in
terns of paying attention to and inproving the quality. As
the state continued to rely nore on halfway houses he
believed it was consistent with the aimof the bill.

Representative QGuttenberg wanted treatnent to go where it
woul d be nost effective. He spoke to the preval ence of
substance abuse inside of prisons, which anazed him He
wanted to ensure that when a substance abuse treatnent
program was put into a hal fway house, people were put in an
appropriate place and environnent.

Co- Chai r Thonpson acknow edged Representati ve Lora
Rei nbol d' s presence in the audience.

2:23:40 PM

Representative Kawasaki asked if the increnent for the
correctional restitution centers was because the cost of a
contract inclusive of other treatnments woul d be higher.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that the funding would add in the
addi tional elenent of providing the programrng, but would
not change the current bed rate. There was additional
| anguage that would require that neasures were taken to not
m x the high and | ow custody offenders. She explained that
the risk assessnments of the offenders and the m xing of the
popul ati on woul d al so be addressed.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Representative Kawasaki asked if it would be additional
funding for additional support staff to visit facilities to
offer the treatnent. Alternatively, he asked if it was
sonmething they already did or may be able to add on and the
noney was for an increase in the contract cost.

Ms. Wl kerson replied that it was a conbination of both.
She detailed that it would go to contract if the contractor
could provide the |level of programm ng approved by the
departnment. Oherwi se, the departnment would be providing
contract services to go into the comunity residential
centers to provide the services.

Vice-Chair Saddler did not see how it was possible to
provide the services for $3.25 per day per person. He
remarked that there were many people who would like to
receive substance abuse treatnent and if it could be
provided for $3.25 he was interested in |earning nore about
it.

Ms. Wl kerson replied that the cost of care was cal cul ated
to get an average; the average was used based on the nunber
of beds. The risk assessnents would be a deciding factor on
who actually would receive programm ng. She explained that
it could be that not all of the 819 individuals would
receive the progranm ng. She elaborated that the cost was
fluctuating, but it was an average; it would be a higher
rate for an actual individual served.

Representative Edgnon remarked that the commttee had
recently passed an omibus healthcare bill (SB 74). He
asked if there were any provisions in SB 74 that related to
the area the DOC fiscal notes (for SB 91) addressed,
specifically in terns of behavioral health.

Ms. W I kerson responded in the negative. She el aborated
that the provisions did not apply to incarcerated
i ndi viduals, which did include individuals housed in the
community residential centers and under probation (only
t hose outside of the facility for nore than 24 hours).

Ms. Cunni ngham relayed that she had helped to prepare the
revised fiscal note. She noted that she had tried to fit it
into one page, which she believed had been a m st ake.

2:28:16 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Ms. W/ kerson addressed a new fiscal inpact note from DOC
related to the Parole Board [labeled 8 at the top of the
packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 695]. She explained that the
fiscal note was not an increase overall. She expounded t hat
for FY 17, the Parole Board believed it needed five
posi tions and $775, 000, which included the one-tinme startup
cost. Going into FY 18 there was a slight drop down to a
cont ai ned budget of $700,900 and the five positions, which
continued on. The funding was nade up of a couple of
di fferent ar eas. She detailed that there was an
anticipation of increased board hearings associated wth
re-incarcerated individuals. Currently individuals had up
to 120 days before appearing before the board again. The
changes in the legislation required the nunber to change to
within 15 days; therefore, there was an expectation to
increase the nunber of days the board net. She explained
that $110,000 of the $700,000 would neet the increased days
associated with board nenbers. Additionally, there was an
anticipated need for four additional hearing officers,
which were currently classified as adult probation officer
1l positions; the total for the positions and operating
needs was $553,000. The board would al so need an additi onal
time accounting officer (crimnal justice technician) and
operating costs, which totaled $112,000 per year. She
summari zed that the combined total would be $775,000 in the
first year [FY 17].

2: 30: 05 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to the previous version of
the fiscal not e, which addressed the redesign and
i npl enentation for the Victim Information Network. He
observed that the nunber was actually in the fiscal note
currently before the commttee. He asked why the redesign
of the system would cost $775, 000.

Ms. WI kerson answered that the ambunt had been an error.
The fiscal note had been revised and had been submtted
earlier that day.

Representati ve Kawasaki stated that in the fiscal note
addressed the total honoraria for mnenbers of the Parole
Board. He renmarked that the board had previously been part-
time at 140 work days per year. He observed that the nunber
of work days was increasing to 200 days, which was close to
a full-time job. He wondered if there had been any

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



consi deration about changing the board structure to make it
easier for people to serve in a part-tinme capacity.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that she was unaware of the
conversations, but she could work with the conm ssioner and
t he board executive director and chair, to determne if it
coul d hel p reduce the cost.

Comm ssioner WIllians elaborated that he and the board
director had already had the conversation; the departnent
was | ooking at the idea to determne how to streamine the
board process and to elimnate the need for all board
menbers to travel to nmeetings. He stated that it may inpact
sone reqgulation issues. He was |ooking for savings because
the parole issue would be increasing substantially in the
bill and would demand devel oping options for savings. He
reiterated that the discussion was al ready underway.

Representati ve Kawasaki believed there was an error in the
fiscal note. He pointed to the section on discretionary

parol e, which included |anguage about all innates over the
age of 60. He believed the bill used the age of 55. He
believed the approxinmate nunber of inmates should be
probabl y hi gher when accounting for the bill |anguage.
2:33:17 PM

Representative WIson comented that she was glad the
commi ssioner was |ooking at saving noney; however, she
bel i eved that when victins addressed the Parole Board, they
woul d probably rather talk to people in person. She stated
that it was not only about the inmates; it was the victims
chance to voice whether they agreed or disagreed with a
potential parole. She asked how nuch the bill's provision
applying to individuals over the age of 55 inpacted the
fiscal note.

Ms. WI kerson answered that there were currently only about
112 individuals over the age of 55; however, there were
caveats that would prohibit them from actually being
rel eased.

Representative WIson understood that the fiscal note would
be fairly substantial. She wondered if the nunbers would
decrease after adjusting and the system becane nornalized.
Al ternatively, she wondered if the nunmber would always be
hi gh based on how nmuch quicker the state was trying to get

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



people through the system which was the reason for a
st eady annual cost goi ng forward.

Ms. Wl kerson affirmed that the ongoing cost was due to the
ti meframe and turnaround.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if M. WIkerson had stated that
there were 112 prisoners who were age 55 or older and who
had served at |east 10 years. Ms. W/l kerson replied "both."
There were 112 prisoners (age 55 or older) who were
convicted sex offenders and had net the 10-year
requirenent.

2: 35: 18 PM

Ms. W/ kerson spoke to a new fiscal inpact note from DOC
[labeled 9 at the top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber
3121]. The note established the pretrial services wthin
DOC. The departnent anticipated a cost of $3.26 nmillion (30
percent of the total funding) and 29 positions in the first
year. There were three parts of the pretrial services
i ncl udi ng assessnent, basi c supervi si on (1 ncluding
monitoring and regular drug testing), and enhanced
supervision. The overall anticipated cost once fully
i npl enented would be approximately 80 positions to operate
the service and a total of approximately $10.2 nmllion for
t he departnent to supervise the popul ation.

Representative Wl son stated that she had the nobst concerns
about the pretrial fiscal note. She asked whether the
departnent currently did any kind of assessnent.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that the departnent currently did
assessnments upon sentencing; individuals sentenced to
incarceration of 30 days or nore received an assessnent.
The assessnent related to pretrial was a nuch shorter
version than any of the departnent's current assessnents.
She detailed that it was a non-contact assessnment with a
review of the offender's crimnal history and a gathering
of just enough information to provide a recomendation to
t he judge.

Representative WIson asked if it could be a conputer
generated program where a person answered questions
electronically and an individual later reviewed the
answers.

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



V5. W kerson deferred the question to Conm ssioner
WIlians.

Comm ssioner WIllians responded that he had not seen any
program that just did it automatically because it was data
that soneone would have to enter online. He stated that
nost of the data would be online in terns of crimnal
record issues and related information. He stated that as
time passed there was an expectation that the departnent
woul d get better at determning how to gather the data. He
believed it would require people to do the assessnent; he
did not know of any way of automating that portion of the
process. He relayed that there were other states that
continued to do better - he was |ooking to the |east anobunt
of people who could do the job. He still believed it would
require individuals to do the work.

2:38:50 PM

Representative WIson asked if there was a way to only do
one assessnment - there was already an assessment upon
sentencing - instead of nultiple assessnents that required
hiring new people. She wunderstood that they were two
different areas [pretrial and upon sentencing].

Comm ssioner WlIllians replied that the assessnents were
dramatically different in scope. The pretrial risk
assessnment would be very straight forward and sinple;
however the assessnent done upon sentencing was rmuch nore
extensive and dealt wth needs issues. The pretria
assessnment was done at the frontend wthout doi ng
interviews of people charged with crines. There may be sone
way of rolling the two together, but it was real work in
terms of doing the assessnent. He believed the process
could possibly be centralized. The reason the departnent
was given tinme to do the work was to ensure it had the nost
sensible and efficient plan possible. He added that it
woul d still require personnel.

Representative WIson asked for verification that everyone
(including individuals who could afford bail) would go
through the pretrial assessnent. She nentioned basic and
enhanced supervision and asked if there nmay be a way for
i ndi viduals who could afford to pay for the supervision, to
pay for the service. She asked if other states had required
those pretrial individuals who could afford to pay, to pay

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



for the service - like they wuld for electronic
noni t ori ng.

Comm ssioner WIllianms replied that the entire strategy was
to deal with the whole bail problem to try to get away
from the situation where individuals who could afford bai

were released from prison, but poor individuals remained in
prison. The goal had been to "turn that ship rather
dramatically."” The idea was that regardless of a person's
ability to pay bail, the departnment would do an assessnent
to determ ne whether the person would nmake the next court
appearance and what kind of risk the person represented to
DOC. He stated that if a person had noney it should not
matter; the judge should have nore objective standards. He
referred to data showing that the area had grown

dramatically - there were hundreds to thousands of people
in prison at present awaiting trial. He stressed that sone
of those individuals should absolutely be in jail, but

there were others where that my not be the case. He
continued that if the individuals could be identified it
was nuch |ess expensive to keep them out of jail and to
prevent them from mxing with nore serious crimnals. It
was a dramatic change that noved away from bail being the
driving factor.

Representative WIson agreed with Comm ssioner WIllians's
statenents and was glad there would be an avenue for
i ndi viduals who could not afford bail. However, sone people
could afford to pay for the supervision. She wanted to
ensure the state was looking into individuals who could
afford the supervision. For exanple, if DOC determ ned a
person was at a nediumrisk and they would have paid to get
out on bail, she wanted to make sure that the individua
may have to pay for supervision (just |ike a person who
chose to pay for electronic nonitoring). She stressed that
the fiscal note would grow from $3 mllion [FY 17] to $10
million [FY 18]. She wanted to ensure that there was way
for individuals to pay if they could afford it.

2:43:54 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki spoke to the risk assessnent tool
that would be used to determ ne whether a [pretrial] person

should be let out of jail or not. He asked if the
departnment would still inpose bail if an individual could
pay.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Comm ssioner WIllianms believed that the judge would still
have discretion about the issue of bail. He el aborated that
it would give the courts a nmuch nore objectified tool to
help the judiciary decide what should happen. He deferred
the question to Nancy Meade, Ceneral Counsel, Al aska Court
System for further detail.

Representative Kawasaki remarked that the fiscal note
mentioned the establishnent of r egi onal offices in
Anchorage, Juneau, and Palnmer. He asked why the specific
| ocati ons had been sel ect ed.

Ms. W1l kerson replied that the regions had been selected
based on the judicial branches that the regions currently
covered. The departnent was continuing to look at the
| ocations to determne whether they were the nost
appropri ate.

Representati ve Kawasaki pointed to the 29 full-time
positions [under FY 17]. He believed it would be an 80-
position fiscal note in subsequent years. He wondered why
the fiscal note included an asterisk in the colums for
subsequent fiscal years.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that the nunber was indeterm nate
in those years.

Representati ve Kawasaki reasoned that the text of the
fiscal note did indicate that the full program would be 80
full-time positions, which was reflected in the $10.1
mllion request.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler was also trying to reconcile the issue.
He referred to the backup pages of the fiscal note that
indicated there would be 80 full-tine positions or 49
positions wthout enhanced supervision. He asked for
verification that nore people would be hired, but the
preci se nunber was not yet known.

Ms. Wl kerson replied in the affirmative. She pointed to
the last statenent on page 4 of the fiscal note, which
indicated that going into FY 18, DOC anticipated that
addi tional positions needed would be offset any increase up
to 80 by adjusting the positions fromthe facility out to
the pretrial.

House Fi nance Committee 24 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson pointed to page 2 of the fiscal note and
expressed anmnazenent at the 32,000 offender assessnents
processed annually, which were required within a 24-hour
peri od.

2:47: 19 PM

Ms. W /I kerson spoke to a new fiscal inpact note from the
House Finance Commttee for DOC [labeled 10 at the top of
t he packet; OVB Conponent Nunmber 2974]. She detail ed that
the note increased the current substance abuse treatnent
programming within the institutions by $700,000 in FY 17
and an additional $300,000 beginning in FY 18. The tota
annual cost beginning in FY 18 would be $1 mllion through
FY 22. The goal was to provide treatnment services to nore
of the incarcerated popul ation.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked for verification that the funding
source was recidivism reduction noney. M. WIKkerson
replied in the affirmative. She detailed that the funding
source was marijuana and al cohol tax.

Representative (Quttenberg stated that the |egislation
stipulated that 50 percent of the marijuana tax went to the
recidivismreduction fund. He remarked that the tax revenue
was not currently known. He noted that he had an anmendnent
that would increase the percentage. He stated that the |ist
of items to fund with recidivismreduction revenue included
subst ance abuse and al cohol treatment. He asked if the fund
source could only be used in the recidivism reduction
program or in treatnment prograns for individuals who were
not in the program

Ms. Wl kerson replied that the |anguage in the npbst recent
version of the bill allowed the funding to go to DOCC
behavi oral health; funds were designated to the departnent
specifically for substance abuse treatnent progranm ng.

2:50: 03 PM

Representative CQuttenberg asked for wverification that the
funds could not be used for on treatnent services for
peopl e outside of the correctional system M. WIkerson
replied in the affirmative.

Representati ve Kawasaki observed that incarcerated nenta
heal th and nedi cal health had been an increasing nunber. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



asked how nmuch the state currently spent on the behaviora
health budget related to the innmate population. M.
W | kerson answered that the current DOC behavioral health
budget for FY 17 was $8.36 mllion.

Representative Kawasaki remarked that the fiscal note
i ncluded a substantial increase, which he believed was well
war r ant ed.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked the fiscal note for institutiona
substance abuse treatnment progranms included correctional
restitution centers. Ms. W/ kerson answered that the fiscal
note only pertained to correctional institutions and did
not include community residential centers.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked for a brief outline of the nunber
of prograns in the DOC institutions. Ms. W | ker son
responded that in FY 15 there had been just over 600
i nmates who conpl eted the short-term Life Success Substance
Abuse Treatnent (LSSAT) and just over 150 who had conpl eted
the long-term Residential Substance Abuse Treatnent (RSAT)
programw thin a correctional center

2:52:45 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson noved on to fiscal notes from the
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS). He asked
the departnent to address the conmmttee.

DI ANE CASTO BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH PCLI CY ADVI SOR, DIVISION OF
BEHAVI OR HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES,
spoke to a previously published fiscal inpact note FN25
fromthe DHSS, Division of Behavioral Health [labeled 11 at
the top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 3099] and a
previously published fiscal inpact note FN 28 from DHSS,

Medi caid Services [labeled 14 at the top of the packet; OVB
Conmponent Nunber 2660]. She explained that the two fisca

notes were tied to the sane activities; one note used
Medicaid funding and the other wused the recidivism
reduction fund. She explained that the fiscal notes funded
reentry community work, particularly wth the Partners
Reentry Center in Anchorage; the four conmunity reentry
coalitions in Fairbanks, Anchorage, Juneau, and Mat-Su; and
four devel oping comunity reentry coalitions in Dillingham

Nonme, Bethel, and Kenai. She renmarked that the second page
of the fiscal notes were the sane and listed the types of
reentry services. She noted that the previous day DHSS had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



spoken to the conmittee about how the center was working to
get direct referrals from DOC institutions as individuals
were released; the reentry center helped individuals to
find jobs and housing, receive training, and get referrals
for treatnment and services. She relayed that the coalitions
were still in a nore grass roots devel opnent stage; four of
the centers were currently doing assessnents of the
capacity in their communities and would then work to
develop the capacity and to start developing a reentry
center in each of the communities. The reentry centers
woul d provide services and good referral to the community
service system

Ms. Casto outlined that FN25 [al so |abeled 11 at the top of
t he page] used noney from the recidivismreduction fund and
included $1 nillion in FY 17 to provide funding for the
Partners Reentry Center in Anchorage, four coalitions
currently funded with startup noney from the Al aska Menta

Health Trust Authority, and startup funds for the four new
reentry centers. She noted that the departnent would be
happy to work wth other communities iif they began
devel oping reentry centers. The cost increased to $2
mllion in FY 18 and $1.625 mllion in FY 19 through FY 22.

She explained that in FY 19 through FY 22 the anount of
reci di vism reduction funding was reduced; $375,000 in FY 14
recidivism reduction funding to |everage an additional

$1.25 mllion in federal Medicaid matching funds. She
explained that in the outlying years as Medicaid reform
took effect, DHSS would Ileverage the nobney to provide
additional funding at the comunity level. There were also
a couple of other things that would help broaden the
ability of communities to provide the services.

2:58: 56 PM

Ms. Casto el aborated that the changes in behavioral health
reform and a possible 1115 waiver would potentially enable
the departnent to increase the kind of services it could
bill for Medicaid such as transitional housing, case
managemnment, and peer support services. Another thing that
woul d help DHSS broaden its ability to maximze the funds
was the change anticipated to renove the current regul ation

enabling a provider to only bill Medicaid if they had a
behavi oral health grant. She expounded that the regulation
change woul d open Medicaid billing up to private providers

and other nonprofits wthout grants. The conbined annual

House Fi nance Committee 27 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



funding from the two fiscal notes in FY 19 through FY 22
was $3.125 million.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked for verification that the reentry
centers were not the sanme as correctional restitution
centers. Ms. Casto answered in the affirmative. She
detailed that the reentry coalition centers were a
community based program to support individuals released
fromthe correctional system She added that hopefully nore
reentry centers woul d be devel oped.

Vice-Chair Saddler pointed to page tw of FN28 [also
| abel ed 14 at the top of the page] that specified there was
currently only one reentry center operating in Al aska. He
asked if it was the pathways center.

Ms. Casto replied that it was the Partners Reentry Center,
whi ch was part of Partners for Progress in Anchorage.

Representative Wl son asked about the current anmount in the
Reci di vism Reduction Fund. M. Casto believed there was
currently zero noney in the fund - the fund source was
marij uana tax, which had not yet begun

Representative WIson thought she had heard Ms. Casto say
that AMHTA would initially provide funding because there
was zero noney in the fund at present.

Ms. Casto replied that there were currently four coalitions
in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Mat-Su, and Juneau. The coalitions
had been in a grass roots process for a while; for the
current year, AMHTA in partnership with DOC had provided a
$100,000 grant to hire a coordinator. One of stipulations
of the noney was the requirenent to conduct a thorough
community assessnent of the services, gaps, needs, nunber
of anticipated clients, and other. The departnment's hope
was to expand the funding in the following year and to
expand funds to the other four devel oping coalitions.

3:03:11 PM

Representative WIlson renmarked that about $6.336 million in
the two fiscal notes was based on the recidivism reduction
fund that currently contained zero funding. She asked if
soneone was g@going to provide the commttee wth the
antici pated tax revenue from marijuana. She stated that the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



entire fiscal notes were based on a fund that contained no
noney.

Ms. Cunni ngham answered that SB 91 created the recidivism
reduction fund; marijuana tax revenue estimtes were based
on the Revenue Sources Book from the Departnent of Revenue.
She noted that the initial range had been from $3 nillion
to $30 mllion. She believed the revenue book included a
figure of $12 mllion. She explained that the fiscal notes
utilized $3 mllion in FY 17; there was an anticipation of
$6 mllion in tax revenue to be collected in FY 17.

Representative WIson asked what would happen if the state
did not bring in enough revenue from marijuana sales. She
remarked that there were background checks required in the
bill. She noted it |ooked Iike there would be $3 mllion in
General Funds. She requested follow up on the question. She
believed it was sorrowful that the entire system would
depend on how profitable marijuana woul d be.

Representati ve Kawasaki asked if the reentry coalitions
were 501(c)3 organizations. M. Casto answered that sone
wer e. She elaborated that nost frequently conmunity
coalitions were grassroots organizations; they were
initially not organized in any way other than a group of
passi onate people who wanted to create change. She believed
that one of the existing four coalitions was a 501(c)3, the
other three had a coalition nenber serving as a fiscal
agent to collect the grant noney from AVHTA. She expounded
that if the coalitions chose to becone a reentry center
they would have to becone a nonprofit. In many cases, the
coalition nmay stay as a nore grassroots organization and
may work to establish a separate reentry center for the
comunity.

Representati ve Kawasaki comented that the Tanana Chiefs
Conference had talked about starting a reentry style
coalition in Fairbanks. He asked if the organization would
have the ability to take advantage of grant funds through
DHSS under the bill.

Ms. Casto answered in the affirmative. The intent was to
hel p peopl e devel op the centers where needed and as needed.
She added that with limted funds DHSS woul d have to manage
what it would look |ike. She el aborated that the departnent
did not see itself providing 100 percent funding for the
reentry centers or the coalitions; the departnent would

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



provide funding to help the entities nove forward. She
continued that if people becane Medicaid eligible, the
services could be billed. Sone of the services provided by
t he Anchorage center such as case nanagenent woul d be able
to be billed down the road - they currently could not be
bi | | ed.

Representative Kawasaki surm sed that DHSS would act as a
sinple granting agency. He commented that the cost would be
up to $3.125 mllion by FY 20. He asked if the departnent
anticipated taking any of the funds or if they would all
pass through to agenci es approved by the departnent.

Ms. Casto answered that the funds would all pass through to
the agencies and work would be done wth departnent
existing staff.

3:08:46 PM

Ms. Casto addressed a previously published fiscal inpact
note FN26 from the Division of Behavioral Health [I abeled
12 at the top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 305]. The
fiscal note pertained to changes in the bill related to the
current Al cohol Safety Action Program (ASAP). She referred
to Sections 152 and 153 of the legislation that included a
slight change and increased definition to who would go into
ASAP. Currently the program was available to anyone
specified by the courts for any alcohol related incidents.
She continued that it was offered to a wde range of
individuals wth various levels of risk or need for
services. The plan for ASAP was to narrow the definitions
of who specifically would be referred to the program
Additionally, there would be a nore prescriptive process
for assessnent, referral to services, and nonitoring. The
funds would go towards ensuring there was a quality
assessnent tool; the departnent was | ooking at the Level of
Services Inventory - Revised (LSIR) screening version. The
departnment would use the funds to purchase the screening
tool materials and conduct training with Anchorage staff
and the other 12 offices in comunities and rural areas.
Fundi ng would al so go towards keeping staff up to speed on
how to use and inplenment training. The departnment currently
used the LSIR (not the screening version) and had a good
working relationship with DOC and its LSIR trainers; DHSS
was hoping to continue partnering with DOC to receive
training assistance for DHSS staff around the state. The
cost was $30,300 for FY 17 and $29,200 in FY 18 through FY

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



22 to account for staff turnover and keeping staff up to
speed on the screening tool.

TONY PI PER, PROGRAM MANAGER, ALCOHOL SAFETY ACTI ON PROGRAM
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SCOCI AL SERVI CES (via
tel econference), added that the departnment would purchase
manuals in the first year; the fiscal note decreased after
FY 17 because the manuals would be a one-tinme purchase.
O her costs would go towards mninmal training and the
purchase of the tool itself, which was copywited.

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er spoke to Sections 151 through 153 of the
| egi sl ation. He asked how the requirements for who had to
submt to the ASAP test changed under the sections.

Ms. Casto deferred the question to M. Piper.

M. Piper replied that the change would elimnate some of
t he people being charged with crines other than those that
were statutorily required (i.e. m nor consum ng, DUl
of fenders, and certain drug offenders that had to do wth
licensing). The bill specified very specific charges as
opposed to nerely anything that was al cohol or drug related
m sdeneanors at one point. He spoke to changes that would
take place in the office. He explained that in the past the
office had only screened for substance wuse; the bill
specified that the office would conduct a full risk
assessnent screening to determne the risk of re-offense
for participants and would nonitor participants to ensure
t hey followed through with mandated court requirenents.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked for verification that fewer tests
woul d be conducted, but the tests would be nore thorough
and targeted to individuals specifically charged with drug
or al cohol related charges.

3:15:11 PM

M. Piper replied in the affirmative.

MATT DAVI DSON, PROGRAM COORDI NATOR, DIVISION OF JUVEN LE
JUSTI CE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL  SERVI CES,
addressed previously published zero fiscal note FN27 for
the Division of Juvenile Justice [labeled 13 at the top of
t he packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 2134]. He relayed that the
comm ssion [Alaska Crimnal Justice Conmission] did not
really consider inpacts on juvenile offenders; therefore,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



the division had been nonitoring the bill to l|ook at the
m ni mal inmpacts the provisions had. He stated that
juveniles were not the focus of the comm ssion's work and
the legislature did not instruct them to |ook at juvenile
of fenders. He addressed the few mnor programratic inpacts
the bill had on juveniles. The changes in the felony
nmonetary levels for property crinmes effected juvenile
offenders. He ~considered a scenario where a juvenile
coommitted a felony level property crine. He explained that
the bill did change how the division would handle the
juvenile - it handled juvenile offenders based on their
risk and need rather than nerely by the level of the
of fence. The second inpact was related to the reduction of
a handful of msdeneanors into violations. Statute gave
authority over crimnal offences - if a mnor conmtted a
crimnal offense, under the bill it would be decreased to a
viol ation. The cases would no |onger be handled directly by
the courts, but would becone citations where the individual
would pay a fine to the court and would no | onger be in the
division's jurisdiction. He relayed that it had no i npact
on the division, primarily because the offences (e.g.
ganbling, dog fighting, and other) were rarely referred to
t he di vi sion.

M. Davidson discussed that the third provision was rel ated
a change from prostitution to a person being a victim of
sex trafficking. The division saw very few prostitution
referrals from |l aw enforcenent; when the division did see
the referrals it referred the youth as victins. He noted
that the individuals often cane in on other charges and
happened to be working the sex trade. The division tried to
get the individuals services outside of the division and it
was very rare t hat yout hs wer e adj udi cat ed for
prostitution. He concluded that the division believed it
could handle the inmpacts within its current budget.

3:18: 07 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson noved on to a fiscal note from the
Department of Law (DQL).

JOHN SKI DMORE, DI RECTOR, CRIM NAL DI VI SION, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW (via tel econference), spoke to a new zero fiscal note
from the DOL Crimnal Division [labeled 15 at the top of
t he packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 2202]. He relayed that the
division had previously submtted an indeterm nate fiscal
note when the bill had been in the other body and it had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



been changed to a zero note by the Senate Finance
Commttee. He spoke to the difficulty of providing an exact
nunber; there were sone areas the Crimnal Di vi si on
anticipated additional wrk and other areas where it
anticipated a reduction in work. He furthered that while
the division anticipated an increase and reduction in
different areas, it was difficult to quantify the itens and
come up with a precise nunber. The departnent woul d attenpt
to absorb any of the costs associated with the bill.

M. Skidnore addressed sentence |engths. He explained that

in f el ony cases there were addi ti onal pr ocedur al
requi renents including requirenents for a grand jury and
sent enci ng conponent s i nvol vi ng aggravators or

m sdeneanors. He elaborated that there were pleadings that
had to be filed and a pre-sentence report, which was
generally prepared; therefore, the sentencings tended to be
nore involved and could include additional litigation. He
di scussed that when certain crinmes were reduced from
felonies to msdeneanors (e.g. the increase in the felony

property thresholds as well as reducing all controlled
substances to m sdeneanors) it reduced the anmpunt of work
that needed to be done. However, in msdenmeanor cases it

used to be that DOL did not have to present aggravators or
mtigators; SB 91 required the departnent to file notice of
aggravators and to potentially present sonme of the
aggravators to a jury. The departnment could not anticipate
how nmuch of that would occur. He reiterated that DOL woul d
attenpt to absorb the costs.

M. Skidnore spoke to bail reform The bill contained
dramatic changes to the way bail was conducted. He detail ed
that nore individuals should be released automatically on
bail and it would hopefully reduce the nunber of hearings.

However, the bill also contained a new requirenent that was
very different from current law related to a person's
ability or inability to post bail. Under current |aw the
courts were not allowed to consider the person's ability to
post bail; however, wunder the bill the courts would be
required to consider it for a second bail hearing if a
person was unable to post bail. The department could not
antici pate how many additional or fewer hearings the change
may result in. The bill also shifted to a risk assessnent

nmet hod. He enphasi zed that DOL was very supportive of using
ri sk assessnents, but because the assessnents had yet to be
devel oped, DOL did not know what they would |ook |ike and
what litigation may result froma new nethod of determ ning

House Fi nance Conmmittee 33 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



bail. He relayed that bail statutes had been changed
several years ago and as a result of the changes there had
been litigation. Hi story showed that when changes were made
there was often initial litigation and then it tended to
di e down.

M. Skidnmore noved to page 3 of the fiscal note pertaining
to other changes SB 91 nade in the law. He reiterated that
DOL did not anticipate a fiscal inpact related to the
changes; however, any tine there were changes there could
be uni ntended consequences or results. He restated that the
fiscal note was zero and DOL would attenpt to absorb any
addi tional costs.

3:24:12 PM

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to |anguage in the fiscal
note related to an increased workload to prove aggravators
and mtigators and from the ability to have a second bail
hearing. He remarked that DOL had submtted a zero fiscal
note; however, he reasoned that there was work attached to
the bill that the departnment would try to absorb or that
DCOL nmay need funding for in future years.

M. Skidnore explained why the zero fiscal note had been
submtted. He relayed that it was difficult because DOL
anticipated additional work, but it did not know how nuch
wor k. He enphasized that the departnent also knew there
woul d be sone reductions. He could not predict what the
offset would be or whether there would be an overall
increase. He noted that the departnment had originally
submitted an indetermnate fiscal note because it was not
sure of the inpact the bill would have.

Co-Chair Thonpson noved to the fiscal note from the
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS).

KELLY  HOWELL, Dl RECTCR, DIVISION OF ADM NI STRATI VE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY (via tel econference),
spoke to the previously published zero fiscal note FN30 for
DPS [labeled 16 at the top of the packet; QOB Conponent
Nunber 2325]. She relayed that the Division of Al aska State
Troopers did not initially foresee any direct fiscal
i mpacts from SB 91 and had submtted a zero fiscal note.

3:26:55 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 34 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Representati ve Kawasaki discussed that there was a hal fway
house in Fairbanks that could not seem to keep residents
in. He noted that on a dozen occasions in the past year
state troopers had to |l ocate the individuals who had gotten
out of the facility. He asked if it was a potential inpact
if the restitution centers would be grow ng.

GARY FOLGER, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY (via
tel econference), replied that he was very famliar with the
situation. The departnment was very hopeful that electronic
noni toring woul d address sonme of the issues.

LAUREE MORTON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, COUNCIL ON DQOVESTIC
VI CLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
spoke to the previously published fiscal inpact note FN31
from the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault
(CDVSA) [l abeled 17 at the top of the packet; QOvB Conponent
Nunber 521]. The fiscal note was primarily related to crine
prevention services. She referred to Section 195 of the
| egi sl ation (pages 118 and 119) added uncodified |anguage
requiring CDVSA to expand or create violence prevention and
victins' service progranmng. The |anguage was in direct
response to the victins' service roundtables she had spoken
about the prior day with the conmttee and the inpact and
influence they had in the conmssion's [Alaska Crimnal
Justice Conm ssion] overall report adding reconmendation 21
to address victim services and in sonme of its priorities

She el aborated that the fiscal note had initially been $2.5
mllion, but there had been necessity to reduce it to $1
mllion. The council wanted to keep the same conplinent of
services, but it would restrict the manner in which it was
able to have the services begin going out into comunities.
She el aborated that there would be fewer comunities wth
Green Dot, Grls on the Run, Coaching Boys into Men, and
other. She explained that the council wanted to keep the
full conplinment. She relayed that the council believed it
was very inmportant to continue conprehensive ways in which
communities could influence their individual «citizens,
groups, and the community as a whole. The council supported
community readiness efforts to build prevention plans and
would | ook at Geen Dot going into nore conmunities. She
spoke to the inportance of evaluating what was working in
order to know that a service was evidence-based and to
"course correct” if sonmething was not working early on. In
FY 20 cost in the services line of the fiscal note
increased in order for CDVSA to have its 10-year | ookback
with the Alaska Victimzation Survey, where the counci

House Fi nance Conmmittee 35 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



hoped to see dimnishing donestic violence and sexual
assault in Alaska and to be progressing in proving that the
primary prevention efforts were working.

3:31: 13 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler pointed to page 2 of the fiscal note and
asked about the goals of the program Lead On for Peace and
Equal ity.

Ms. Morton replied that Lead On for Peace and Equality was
a three-day statewi de conference that was youth |led and
adult supported. She explained that youth |eaders from
across the state applied to attend. The I|eaders crafted
ways to be initiators in their comunities for various
activities and programring to lead to peaceful comunities.
At the end of the conference the youths had projects and
plans to inplement in their communities. There was a small
program using mni-grants for youth |eaders to apply for
$2,500 to help inplenent sone of the projects. Throughout
the year there were various teleconferences or webinars to
stay connected and to cone up with ways to build comunity
| eader shi p.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked if the program focused on personal
or national relationships. M. Mrton answered that the
focus was on personal and conmunity relationships. She
detailed that it applied to donestic violence, sexual
assault, suicide prevention, substance abuse prevention,
and other. The program represented ways for youths to help
their community blend to be healthy and respectful to one
anot her.

3:33:16 PM

Representative Gara asked if the fiscal note included noney
for better intervention. M. Mrton answered in the
negati ve.

Representative Gara noted that there had been a cut to the
Grls on the Run and Coaching Boys into Men. He asked for
verification that the $1 mllion request for FY 17
reflected the understanding that a cut had been nmade and
was accur ate.

Ms. Morton responded that in FY 15 the CDVSA had all ocated
$2.75 mllion to prevention activities including the Al aska

House Fi nance Conmmittee 36 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Victimzation Survey. The anmount had been reduced for FY 16

through the operating budget process to a little wunder
$500,000. In FY 17 there were no funds in the operating
budget for any prevention activities. The council had 9

staff, but the nunber had been reduced by three in FY 17.
She noted that the council had been expecting a cut of two
positions including an office assistant and program
coordi nator; however, it had not been expecting to |ose the
third position, which would be difficult. The $1 nillion
had been derived from the realization in the Senate that -
the desire to show nore of a savings than a recognition

t hat those savings could be reinvested into the
programm ng; therefore, the council had adjusted down its
fiscal note accordingly. She detailed that from FY 15 at
$2.7 mllion the council was down in FY 17 to $1 mllion

for the sane activities. She added that the funding did
all ow the council to continue.

3:35:46 PM

Representative Minoz asked how nmuch of the $2 million in FY
18 and would go directly to the community prograns
nentioned by M. Mrton. M. Mrton answered that $1.6
mllion for grants that would go directly to communiti es.

Representati ve Munoz asked how the renmi ning $400, 000 woul d
be used. Ms. Mrton replied that $50,000 would go to travel
(approximately $5,000 for staff and $45,000 for comunity
nmenbers; it was a cost savings to consolidate the travel
arranged in the council's office), $50,000 for comodities
(it was nore efficient for CDVSA to produce materials to
send out instead of each individual program purchasing
their owm materials), and $300,000 in contracted services
(for joint activities between communities and work wth
i ndependent eval uators wor ki ng directly W th t he
communities on the different parts of their projects and
activities).

Representative Edgnon discussed that the DPS budget
subcommittee had nade the difficult decision to reduce the
council's staff fromnine to six. He asked for verification
that the fiscal note assuned the work would be done by the
reduced staff. Ms. Morton replied in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that Representative Liz Vasquez was

present in the room He noved on to fiscal notes from the
Al aska Court System

House Fi nance Conmmittee 37 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



NANCY MEADE, GENERAL COUNSEL, ALASKA COURT SYSTEM spoke to
the previously published zero fiscal note FN32 from the
Al aska Court System [l abeled 18 at the top of the packet;
OMB Conponent Nunber 768]. She relayed that the earlier
testinmony from DOL and the Public Defender Agency reflected
the court systemis thinking as well. She detailed that the
bill would likely result in additional work and hearings in
sone areas and hopefully less work and fewer hearings in
ot her areas. She remarked on earlier testinony that changes
to the bail statute were conprehensive. She el aborated that
the courts anticipated nore defendants asking for a bail
review hearing because the inability to pay was grounds to
recei ve another hearing. Changes to the bail statute would
include significant work upfront to coordinate and
interface with the DOC Pretrial Services Ofice; there
woul d be 32,000 reports on arrested individuals and sonmehow
getting the reports to the court wthin 24 hours. She
anticipated that the court system would be working hard
within the next 18 nonths; it was not sonething with a
fiscal inpact per se - the departnent would not hire
soneone to do the work, but adm nistrative staff would be
wor ki ng hours with DOC to nmake the coordination work well
The departnment would need to use its information services
staff to establish email accounts to send the reports to or
a web interface. She explained that the bill did inpact the
departnment's workload, but not in a way that would require
addi ti onal resources.

Ms. Mead addressed changes to the probation provisions. She
di scussed that people could get a probation termnation
heari ng, which the departnment expected to increase. Changes
in the types of violations that could lead to a petition to
revoke probation (PTRP) could increase the nunber of PTRPs,
which would Ilead to an increased workload for the
department. The change in the msdeneanor |law so that
aggravators and mtigators may be proven, would likely |ead
to nore hearings or trials that nay lead a person to
conclude that the m sdenmeanor should be aggravated or
mtigated. On the other hand, sone felonies were becom ng
m sdeneanors and it was generally less work to process a
m sdeneanor. Additionally, sone m sdeneanors would becone
violations, which was also generally less work. She added
that violations did involve a court appearance, but it was
still typically less work than a m sdeneanor. She di scussed
t hat whenever there was a conprehensive change in |laws |ike

House Fi nance Conmmittee 38 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



the one at hand, there was the probability that nmany of the
provisions would be litigated and |lead to several appellate

cases; until the vagaries were 1ironed out, it would
i ncrease workl oad. There were a couple of provisions in the
bill such as the change to the credit for time served

paraneters and what the judge could consider in order to
grant it, which she believed would I ead to nany nore Nygren
or 027 hearings [Nygren v. State and AS 12.55.027
respectively], which would also lead to an increase in
wor kl oad until ironed out and nore established in the | aw

Ms. Mead relayed that changes to the limted license
provisions may or may not result in additional hearings
depending on the outcone. Overall, the court system
bel i eved the changes would be a wash and woul d be sonet hing
the departnment could absorb w thout asking for additional
resour ces.

Representative WIson spoke to the treatnent portion of the
bill and asked why the departnent believed there would be
nor e heari ngs.

Ms. Mead replied that Representative WIson was speaking to
changes to AS 12.55.027 (credit for tine served spent in a
treatment progranm). Currently the statute set out strict
guidelines for what a program had to entail in order for
the judge to grant the credit. She furthered that if the
program had three certain characteristics the judge granted
the credit for tinme spent in the treatnent program The
change made by the previous conmttee renoved the definite
strict constraints and ability to ook at a programto know
if it conplied. She detailed that the change had been nmade
specifying that a judge was to consider 10 factors in
deciding whether to grant credit for tinme served. Factors
included things |ike whether a program was residential or
not and the extent to which electronic nonitoring was used;
the specifications were nore vague and less well defined.
She relayed that when things were vague there was room for
argunment about what was going on with a treatnment program
Currently the judge, defense attorney, and prosecutor all
knew in different comrunities which treatnent prograns fit
the paranmeters of the statute; therefore, the hearings to
receive credit did not take significant tinme. Wth new and
vague paraneters people would argue about whether a program
did or did not fit the statute, which was the reason she
anti ci pated seei ng nore hearings.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 39 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Representative WIson asked if M. Mead thought that as
time passed that there would be less argunent as it would
becone defined as nore people used prograns that may not
currently fall under the specific provisions.

Ms. Mead responded when the court determ ned whether a
program qualified under the statute, the court nade no
determ nation about the effectiveness of the treatnent. She
detailed that the credit was day-for-day; if the program
had certain characteristics the person received day-to-day
treatment. The court did not consider whether a person
achi eved sobriety or was any way rehabilitated.

Representative WIson thought that was not good. She spoke
to nunerous discussions throughout session related to
i ssues with behavioral health. She asked if it was possible
that adding the broader |anguage could enable the use of
nore progranms that were not full. She remarked that
treatment prograns in the state were full; therefore,
people did not have access to treatnent. She believed it
was the hope that there were other good prograns that
people may not currently be taking advantage of because
they could not receive credit for those specific prograns.
She asked if the good outconmes outweighed the possibility
of additional hearings.

3:46: 38 PM

V5. Mead answered that it was a question for the
| egi sl ature. She had di scussed her concerns about increased
hearings with the maker of the anmendnent and his hope was
that nore progranms would qualify. She did not know if it
was the case or not, but it was a policy call for the
| egi sl ature.

Representative WIson contenplated which departnments would
report back to the legislature in the future on things that
were going well or going poorly as a result of the
| egislation. She did not realize that a person's success in
a treatnent program was not factored into the court's
decision to grant credit.

Co- Chair Neunman relayed that he had worked on a recidivism
reduction plan with Ms. Mead. During that tine AMHTA had
contributed noney to create a database/library built wthin
the University of Al aska system that would track what type
of treatnent prograns were used, how they were used, and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 40 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



which were effective. He stated that what nay be effective
in one region of the state may not work in another area. He
agreed that they needed the ability to know where and how
the state was spending its noney, which was the reason for
the creation of the library (in order to prevent wasting
funds for treatnent).

Representative Gara remarked that there was a hesitance by
the commttee to change fiscal notes on a bill that it
wanted to pass. He discussed that the court system offered
therapeutic and alternative courts in cases |like the one
under di scussi on.

V5. Mead affirmed that the court system did offer
t her apeutic court.

Representative Gara stated that the legislature had al ways
been told that the court was below capacity to address as
many individuals as it would like. He asked if the bill
would result in providing nore or less offenders wth
access to the therapeutic courts.

Ms. Mead replied that therapeutic courts was probably the
only court that had been evaluated for effectiveness
through a Judicial Council study. The study had determ ned
the program to be effective (not 100 percent, but the
effectiveness was very positive for graduates of the
program). The bill did not touch therapeutic courts wth
the exception of the limted |license provision specifying
that a person could apply for a limted license if they had
been through a therapeutic court. The court hoped that it
may be an incentive or notivate nore people to enroll in
the program The state could use nore people who want to go
through the program there were openings in nost of the
courts. She elaborated that there were not openings in
Fai rbanks, but it was a very good bal ance - there were not
openings, but there was not a wait list. She relayed that
the remainder of the state could use nore people who were
nmotivated to go through the courts. She addressed that the
18-month prograns were difficult. For exanple, when people
faced 4 nonths in jail or 18 nonths in therapeutic court,
many chose not to go through the court. She detail ed that
the program was grueling and started off with nmeetings five
days per week, which tapered as tine went on. She
communi cated that the court system was anxious to get nore
people into therapeutic courts. The only part of the bill
that may increase the nunber was the Ilimted |Iicense

House Fi nance Committee 41 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



provision. Additionally, the Pretrial Service Ofice was
generally charged with recommending to the court whether
the person wuld be a good candidate for diversion
progranms, which could include therapeutic court. She
surm sed that perhaps raising the awareness that a person
may be a good candi date coul d be hel pful.

3:51:32 PM

Representative Gara remarked that |ike the Public Defender
Agency and others, the courts had only had a certain nunber
of statutory judges. He reasoned that with the zero fisca
note, the departnment would absorb the work wthin the
current nunber of judges.

Ms. Mead replied in the affirmative. She explained that
with many bills that entailed an increased workload, the
department could not say it needed another judge. She
furthered that a judge sat in one |location and the
i ncreased workload would be spread across all of the
judges. The departnent tried to submt very credible fiscal
notes and usually specified that it could absorb the work,
which was the case at present. She did believe it would be
nmore work for individual judges, which would inpact the
justice system but additional resources were not needed to
i npl enent the bill.

Representative Gara spoke to the reforns on Medicaid that
| everaged extra behavioral health grants including drug and
al cohol treatnent. He asked if nore prisoners would qualify
for the grants that would allow the court system to expand
the use of therapeutic courts if necessary.

Ms. Mead answered that t herapeutic courts happened
i ndependently of prison and instead of prison in alnost
every situation. She detailed that a person pled guilty and
went into the program with the consent of the district
attorney, judge, and nmany others; it did not touch the
prison systemin nost cases to her know edge.

Representative Gara could not renenber if being a prisoner
disqualified a person from sone Mdicaid services. He asked
if there would be nore behavioral health funds through
Medicaid for the population who may want to utilize the
t herapeutic court program

House Fi nance Committee 42 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Ms. Mead answered that she did not know, however, nobney was
not an obstacle for people in therapeutic courts.

Representative Minoz remarked that the fiscal not e
speci fied that workload would bal ance out - there would be
nmore hearings in sone cases and perhaps less in others.
However, the courts would face half-day closures in the
comng year and mandatory furloughs. She asked if the
departnment had anal yzed how the changes and the increased
wor kl oad woul d i npact its budget.

Ms. Mead replied that it was very speculative what would
happen under the bill. The court could anticipate that nore
hearings in sone areas were likely, but it had not anal yzed
where the increase would take place and how it would be
handl ed. She relayed that the departnment was down 50
enpl oyees and the clerks' offices were very busy. However
one bill did not justify the court to hire six clerks
across the state because the inpact was currently not
known.

3:55:35 PM

SUSANNE DI Pl ETRO, ALASKA  JUDI Cl AL COUNCI L (via
tel econference), spoke to the previously published fiscal
i mpact note FN33 from the Al aska Judicial Council [Iabeled
19 at the top of the packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 771]. The
costs specified in the note were in connection to the
council's responsibility to staff the work of the Al aska
Crim nal Justice Conm ssion. The work was currently
underway, and the note represented a continuation of
funding provided to staff the comm ssion to date. The note

included a small increase to reflect additional duties that
would fall to the comm ssion. She explained that the bil
woul d extend the conmmission to June 2021. The bill asked

the commssion to make annual recomendations to the
| egi slature and governor on how savings from crimnal
justice reform should be reinvested to reduce recidivism
Additionally, the comm ssion would collect and anal yze data
collected by crimnal justice agencies (including the court
system DOC, and DPS) on recidivism and other factors that
woul d enable the conmssion to tell the legislature what
effect the changes in the law were having on the crimnal
justice system In its report, the conm ssion would include
a summary of savings and recomrendations on how savings
fromcrimnal justice reform should be reinvested to reduce
recidivism it would also report on performance netrics and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 43 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



out cones of the recommendations the commission nade in its
Decenber 2015 report, which were essentially the provisions
of SB 91. The information would include the percentage of
inmates who return to prison three years after release
(broken down by offence type and risk level) and
recommendations for any additional refornms. If it was
determ ned that the provisions of SB 91 were not sufficient
or needed adjusting, the comm ssion would conme back to the
| egi slature with recommendati ons.

Ms. DI Pietro discussed that the comm ssion was al so tasked
with cooperating with DHSS in its efforts to increase
access to evidence based rehabilitation and reentry
services. Lastly, the conmssion was required to provide
four additional reports to the legislature: driving while
i ntoxicated, restitution, social inpact bonds, and sexual
of fences. The fiscal note continued the conmssion's
staffing; it would increase the one attorney position from
part-tinme to full-time to reflect the additional work.
Additionally, the note increased a research staff position
from 20 hours per week up to 29 hours per week due to the
significant increase in data collection and analysis. The
note also included 7.5 hours per week of additional
adm ni strative support; the original note had not included
adm ni strative support for the comm ssion and the Judicia

Council had absorbed the work w thout funding, which the
council had determned was a mistake - it needed a bit
extra to help the comm ssion get organized and do its work.

4:00: 30 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson noved to the fiscal note from the
Depart ment of Adm nistration.

M CHELE M CHAUD, CH EF HEALTH OFFI CER DIVISION OF
RETI REMENT AND BENEFI TS, DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON
addressed a new fiscal inpact note from the Division of
Retirement and Benefits [labeled 20 at the top of the
packet; OVB Conponent Nunber 2866]. The note pertained to
Sections 161 to 172 of the legislation, which closed a gap
in coverage and provided system paid major nedical to the
survivors of peace officers and firefighters killed in the
line of duty. The cost began in FY 17 at approximtely
$174,000 and increased to $226,000 in FY 22.

CSSSSB 91(FIN) AM was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

House Fi nance Committee 44 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson discussed the schedule for the follow ng
day. He recessed the neeting to a call of the chair [note:
t he neeting never reconvened].

#
ADJ OURNIVENT

4:02:45 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:02 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 45 04/ 22/ 16 1:33 P. M



